
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 4 December 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 27 November 2019 

(Pages 1 - 4)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Schools ICT Managed Service Contract 

(Pages 5 - 14)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

8a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Data Migration and 
Implementation Services 

(Pages 15 - 22)

9  Date and time of next meeting 

10:00am on Wednesday 11 December 2019 in the Boardroom, 
Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Public Document Pack



Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

27 November 2019

Meeting commenced: 10:10am
Meeting ended: 10:58am

PRESENT: Councillors Hinds (in the chair) and Merry

IN ATTENDANCE: Ryan Adamson Senior Engineering Technician
Opu Anwar Infrastructure Team
Catherine Brereton Senior Project Officer
Simon Cook Urban Vision
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Sarah Heslop Group Leader Development
Anthony Hilton Head of Strategic Procurement
Shoaib Mohammad Assistant Director Technical Services
Hayley Nixon Commercial Project Manager
Frank O’Sullivan Strategic HR & OD Manager
Richard Tindall Principal Engineer
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Boshell and the 
City Mayor Paul Dennett.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2019 were approved as a 
correct record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

5. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL 
STANDING ORDERS – CONTRACT AWARD – UV TRANSITION

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking 
approval for an exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow contracts to 
be awarded for the purchase of file storage, advertising signage, waste 
disposal and skip provision, gas bulk deliveries and bottles, and ICT licences 
for estates. The report also sought approval to go out to competition for 
Consultants Services.

The Board was informed that file storage costs were likely to be similar, 
regardless of location of storage, but extraction alone would cost in the region 
of £30,000 before bulk transportation costs.  The board agreed to support the 
purchase of storage in the current location but asked for this to be reviewed in 
12 months’ time.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

RESOLVED, THAT:

1) an exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance 
with Paragraph 3.1 as follows: Specialist supplies/services which are 
available only from one supplier, for reasons of compatibility with existing 
services/products, where the council can demonstrate that an integrated or 
strategic approach to procurement is being implemented and there is a 
requirement to align services or contracts to co-terminus end dates, and there 
are value for money reasons, and

2) award of the contracts be approved for file storage, advertising signage, 
waste disposal and skip provision, bulk gas deliveries and bottles, and an ICT 
licence for estates in relation to the transition of UV Services, as outlined in 
the table below and associated Record of Decision.

Contract File Storage

(location to be 
reviewed in 12 
months’ time)

Signage Waste & Skips Gas Bulk 
Deliveries & 

Bottles

Commercial 
Property 
System

Contractor Capita Intelligent 
Communications 

(CIC)
M & A Brown George Parish 

& Sons Calor Gas Ltd CoStar

Value £75,000 £30,000 £60,000 £20,000 £17,000

3) approval be granted to go out to competition for the provision of specialist 
services and consultancy.

6. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – CONTINUATION OF THE STRATEGY FOR 
THE PROVISION OF APPRENTICESHIPS

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of Service 
Reform seeking approval for the continuation of the strategy for the 
procurement of apprenticeships and of the Strategic Partnership with Salford 
City College and Salford University for the delivery of apprenticeships as first 
tier supplier for direct award.

The proposed four year continuation of the Strategic Partnership had a total 
estimated value of £2.5m. 

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve the 
continuation of the strategy for the procurement of apprenticeships and the 
continuation of the Strategic Partnership with Salford City College and Salford 
University for the delivery of apprenticeships as first tier supplier for direct 
award.

7. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL – EXCEPTION TO CONTRACTUAL 
STANDING ORDERS – CONTRACT AWARD – REMOVAL OF 
VEGETATION ALONG THE RIVERSIDE OF THE IRWELL FROM WODEN 
BRIDGE THROUGH TO TRINITY WAY BRIDGE

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking 
approval for an exception to Contractual Standing Orders to allow a contract 

Page 2



Page | 3 

to be awarded for the removal of vegetation along the riverside of the Irwell 
from Woden Bridge through to Trinity Way Bridge.

It was confirmed that the Manchester Ship Canal ended at Woden Bridge, 
where the River Irwell started, hence responsibility for this work lying with the 
City Council rather than with Peel Holdings.

RESOLVED, THAT:

1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance 
with paragraph 3.1 as follows: specialist services/supplies which are available 
only from one supplier, and

2) a one month contract, with a value of £14,040 plus VAT,  be awarded to 
Bilway Marine Ltd for the removal of vegetation along the edge of the River 
Irwell from Woden Bridge through to Trinity Way Bridge. 

8. TRAFFORD ROAD IMPROVEMENTS – STATUTORY UNDERTAKERS C6 
ISSUE OF MAIN ORDERS UNDER THE NEW ROADS AND 
STREETWORKS ACT 1991

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking 
approval of the expenditure required to allow the Statutory Undertakers 
Diversions and Drainage Investigations enabling works package of the 
Trafford Road Improvements Scheme to commence.

The main works package was intended to improve the infrastructure to deliver 
improved capacity for vehicles, reduced congestion, improved pedestrian and 
cycle connectivity, support continued growth and better neighbourhood 
connections.

It was acknowledged that there were a lot of other roadworks going on in the 
vicinity but the Board was assured that close co-ordination was taking place 
with Transport for Greater Manchester, and it had always been the intention 
that the Trafford Road works would not start until the Regent Road works had 
finished. Close co-ordination was also underway with Manchester City and 
Trafford Councils, as well as other key stakeholders such as Old Trafford, 
ahead of the main works package, and there had already been some 
engagement with the public in the form of ‘drop-in’ events. 

RESOLVED, THAT: The City Mayor be recommended to approve the 
expenditure for the required diversionary works as follows to enable C6 
payments under NRSWA to be made for Trafford Road Enabling Works – 
Statutory Undertakers Diversions and Drainage Investigations to be carried 
out between 20-01-20 and 22-06-20:

BT £ 166,966.49
BT Payphones £ 14,563.00
City Fibre £ 43,719.91
Colt £ 238,163.17
Electricity North West £ 118,299.36
Instalcom £ 18,397.13
Cadent Gas £ 33,443.93
SSE £ 40,745.39
Virgin Media £ 1,322.95
Vodafone £ 179,557.00
Contingency for C3 / C4 fluctuation £ 620,685.67

£ 1,475,864.00

Page 3



Page | 4 

9. SBNI – DESIGN PACKAGE 3 – TENDER APPROVAL

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking 
approval of the appointment of Eurovia Infrastructure Limited to undertake 
SBNI Salford Delivery Package 3 works and approval of the expenditure for 
the required diversionary works.

It was confirmed that only one tender was submitted in response to the mini 
competition that was issued to contractors on the Manchester Highway Works 
Framework.

RESOLVED, THAT: the City Mayor be recommended to approve:

1) the appointment of Eurovia Infrastructure Limited to undertake the 
SBNI Salford Delivery Package 3 works, at a cost of £1,635,231.79, 

2) the expenditure for the required diversionary works as follows:

British Telecom - £255,062.03
Electricity North West -   £37,809.88
United Utilities - £586,017.47
Virgin Media -   £12,901.48, and

3) authority be delegated to the Strategic Director Place in consultation 
with the S151 officer to amend the Deed of Variation for the existing 
Grant Funding Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA).

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

10:00am on Wednesday 4 December 2019 in the Boardroom, Salford City 
Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Page 4



*Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for People

TO

Procurement Board

ON

4 December

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract extension for RM Education – Schools ICT Managed Service

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board  

(1) Approve an exception to Contractual Standing Orders in accordance with 
Paragraph 3.1 as follows:

 *The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time 
needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the council’s 
interests.

 *Specialist services/supplies which are available only from one supplier. 
For example, specialist niche consultants or suppliers where there is a sole 
supplier of patented or proprietary articles, or materials or services 
exclusively provided by a statutory undertaker or other bodies.

 *For reasons of compatibility with existing services/products – for example, 
equipment that needs parts from its own manufacturer.

 *Where the council can demonstrate that an integrated or strategic 
approach to procurement is being implemented and there is a requirement 
to align services or contracts to co-terminus end dates.

 *There are value for money reasons justifying an exception.

(2) Approve the award of the Contract for Schools ICT Managed Service as 
detailed in the table below:

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Schools ICT Managed Service Contract

Name of Successful Contractor RM Education
Supplier Registration Number 8736512

Type of organisation Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation Non-SME

Contract Value £1.6m Per Annum (estimated average)
Contract Duration 24 Months
Contract Start Date 20/09/2020
Contract End Date 21/09/2022
Optional Extension Period 1 24 Months
Optional Extension Period 2 N/A
Who will approve each Extension 
Period? Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Contact Officer (Name & number) Craig Monaghan - 0339
Lead Service Group People Services

The need for the goods, services or works 
is so urgent that the time needed to 
comply with the rules would be prejudicial 
to the Council’s interests
Specialist services/supplies which are 
available only from one supplier. For 
example, specialist niche consultants or 
suppliers where there is a sole supplier of 
patented or proprietary articles, materials 
or services exclusively provided by a 
statutory undertaker or other bodies
For reasons of compatibility with existing 
services/products – for example, 
equipment that needs parts from its own 
manufacturer
Where any of the standing orders are 
inconsistent with any legislative 
requirements, in which instance the 
provisions of the appropriate legislation 
shall prevail

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

Where the Council can demonstrate that 
an integrated or strategic approach to 
procurement is being implemented and 
there is a requirement to align services or 
contracts to co-terminus end dates

Page 6



There are value for money reasons 
justifying a CSO Exception
School Governors: in relation to the Local 
Management of Schools (LMS), where 
schools have adopted their own standing 
orders
The shared legal service, in respect of the 
appointment of counsel
Strategic Director of CHSC: contracts for 
the provision of personal care services or 
facilities pursuant to the National Health 
Service and Community Care Act 1990

Funding Source Revenue Budget

(3) Note that prior to the end of the period of time covered by the exception as 
indicated in 2 above, the Strategic Director will determine whether the service is 
to be decommissioned or, in consultation with the Corporate  Procurement 
Team, will agree to undertake a compliant procurement process to re-let the 
contract by the end of the exception period.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek request an exception to Contractual Standing 
Orders to approve the award of a contract for Salford Schools ICT Managed Service.

The Current existing Schools ICT Managed Service contract has been running 
successfully in Salford Schools since 2016 under RM Education Ltd. This contract 
comes to a close in August 2020.

Salford Council initially went out to Tender to create an ICT Managed Service to 
enable schools to buy in for short periods of time i.e. 2 years initial period through a 
Governing Body Agreement. Thus creating an option of a consistent ICT 
package/offer for the school estate.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

 Report of the Strategic Director for Children and Adults to the Lead Member for 
Children and Young People’s Services – 21/11/19.

 2018/19 Customer Satisfaction Survey

KEY DECISION: 

Yes – The total value of the contract is greater than £350,000 

Page 7



DETAILS: 

The RM Education Ltd contract has been running successfully in Salford Schools 
since 2016. The introduction of an ICT Managed Service was to create a level 
playing field for the provision of ICT across Salford school estate.  Updating 
schools provision in a timely manner to suit their individual budgets to meet the 
needs of a modern curriculum offer.

RM Education Ltd have successfully ensured that the schools within the managed 
service create a development plan to continually enhance their ICT capabilities so 
all children are able to learn within a modern digital approach.  Schools are 
included in an annual satisfaction survey and the results have continued to be 
positive.  Schools choose themselves whether to take up the service.

 There are currently 67 schools in the service
 The service currently covers 17,248 pupils.

Schools continue to go through a number of changes in term of ICT equipment with 
a journey that has started towards more cloud based access and technology and 
solid state devices (e.g. Tablets, work book).   

The intention would be to provide the offer of continuity with the known provider as 
schools continue on their journey towards Cloud based technology and importantly, 
with the proposed extension, the schools would still have the option to extend or go 
elsewhere for their managed service.  RM Education Ltd essentially carry the risk if 
schools decide not to extend. It would be for RM Education Ltd to continue to work 
with schools to demonstrate the added advantages of continuing with their service.

Current Market Place

Salford Council initially went out to tender to create an ICT Managed Service to 
enable schools to buy in for short periods of time through a Governing Body 
Agreement, creating an option of a consistent ICT package/offer for the school 
estate.  The current contract was tendered in 2016 through a mini-competition from 
a Crown Commercial Services framework and was for a period of four years 
commencing September 2016 and comes to a close in August 2020. At that time 
the Council only received two bids 

A tendering exercise early in 2019 by one of Salford’s Multi Academy Trust (MAT’s) 
resulted in the same two companies tendering as the original RM Education Ltd 
contract back in 2016. The competition in the market place has reduced further with 
the second company going into administration in summer 2019, (ceased trading 
shortly after tendering for this MAT).

Both the 2016 competitive process and the recent MAT procurement process 
demonstrates the gap in the market place for companies of sufficient size to 
undertake such a large scale managed service. 

Page 8



Benefits and Costs to extending

When the contract comes to an end in September 2020 some schools will still be 
part way along their journey and it may leave a gap in their ICT provider and support 
if we did not extend with RM Education Ltd Education. This means that schools 
would need to think about changes immediately and source another provider. There 
are a number of benefits from the continuation of the ICT managed service such as:

 They know their current provider and have an ongoing relationship.

 They currently understand there is an ‘opt-in’ solution.

 Costs for schools – current costs will managed through the existing contract with 
RM Education Ltd Solutions.  Given their mix of legacy equipment and platforms 
this represents good value, with access to Technicians as required. 

 There is risk around the supply chain capacity after the Gaia Technologies went 
into administration. 

 As part of the contract schools are entitled to a designated engineer who will be 
on hand to resolve any issues they encounter on a day to day basis, they will 
also help schools with any requests relating to ICT enhancement and teaching 
assistance etc.  (This helps for the legacy equipment)

 Technology journey is at different stages in each school. With cloud based 
technology and ongoing replacement of older kit with moving parts to solid state 
devices.  

 Through the customer satisfactory surveys we find that the schools are happy 
with the service they receive from RM Education Ltd along with the ‘add on’ offer 
that are discounted when the provider is chosen by schools to submit prices for 
additional kit of upgrade work.

 Additional resource has not been accounted for so it is considered not possible, 
given the time, that we would have the resource to re-tender, schools would need 
to make their own arrangements.

Request for Waiver of Standing Orders

Following Lead Member briefing on 21/11/19 approval was given for Children’s 
Services to seek an exception to Contractual Standing Orders from Procurement 
Board to extend the existing contract and allow schools to stay in the contract for a 2 
year extension (2020 to 2022) with a further option of extension for an additional 2 
years (2022 to 2024). 

Therefore a request for a 4 year extension with the option for the City Council to opt 
out of the service with notice at 2022.

The intention of the original contract was to offer schools the option of extension 
beyond September 2020, which currently the schools are expecting.  We have a 
trusted partner within the current provider and the continuity provided by the option 
of the extension gives schools, particularly those still progressing to the modern 

Page 9



technologies, the added security and support they may require.

The need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that the time needed to 
comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the Council’s interests;
The time and resource required to complete a full tender for all schools is not 
feasible, hence the request for this urgent review to ensure we can secure the ICT 
Services from RM from September 2020. 
Specialist services/supplies which are available only from one supplier;
The last time SCC took this contract to the ICT marketplace only two suppliers from 
the Crown Commercial list decided to tender for the services requested. Since the 
contract was last awarded, one of those companies is no longer trading.  Reviewing 
suppliers for the North West for this type of Service direct to schools has resulted in 
no other large provider for this area of service that have the size and capacity to take 
on the current list of schools.
Where the council can demonstrate that an integrated or strategic approach to 
procurement is being implemented;

Currently the schools are going through a major change within ICT offer with many 
moving to cloud based technology and a working through of equipment from older kit 
with moving parts to more agile kit with solid state drives etc.  Which means a mixed 
economy at the moment and therefore potential to disrupt and leave the schools 
disadvantaged.  The strategic approach is to ensure that the service option for 
schools is there.  Whilst they would still have the option to go to a smaller supplier 
the larger supplier gives the option of best value and continuation of service.

There are value for money reasons justifying a CSO Exception;
Using the latest annual customer feedback survey carried out in 2018, over 86% of 
Schools rated present supplier good or outstanding.  From these results we see no 
necessity to enter into a costly procurement process that schools may choose not to 
sign up for. In addition the current supplier will be aware of the capacity within the 
market place and therefore the procurement process could mean that the cost to 
schools would likely go up as the supplier would need to re-evaluate against the 
current capacity within the market.

Taking all of the above factors into consideration, Officers would seek an exception 
to Contractual Standing Orders and allow a 2+2 contract. This would include a 
clause that  that if the city council  was challenged around the length of contract .i.e. 
extending beyond 2 years, then the City Council could opt out of the contract after 
the end of the initial 2 years (August 2022).

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

N/A

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-  

Page 10



N/A.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

HIGH – Schools will need to manage their own ICT provision without the offer of a 
centrally supported service picking up the benefits value of the existing service. 

Schools, especially small schools, may run the risk of having no ICT managed 
service provider which potentially could lead to periods without any internet 
connection and none compliance with the national curriculum. In addition limited or 
no access to other essential internal systems. i.e.  SIMS, on line registration, 
Safeguarding etc.

SOURCE OF FUNDING Supplied by: Chris Mee - Strategic Finance Manager Ext 
0434

The contract is a ‘call off’ contract for schools managed through a Governing Body 
Agreement.  The cost of this contract is fully funded by the schools receiving the 
services from within their individual delegated school budgets. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or works the 
Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
(PCR) as well as with its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) and Financial 
Regulations. The Council must act transparently and treat all potential suppliers 
equally and in a non-discriminatory way in its procurement. The Council must also 
secure Best Value in its purchasing, namely a duty to carry out its functions 
economically, efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money 
in all public procurement, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to 
legal challenge.

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from the 
Procurement Board, as detailed in Part 5 of the Constitution there is still a risk of 
challenge from aggrieved providers as there is always a risk that any award of 
business, if made outside of the full competitive processes, could be subject to 
challenge on the basis that it ought to have been advertised and put out to 
competition in accordance with the above principles. 

The risk of challenge naturally increases in tandem with the value and proposed 
length of the contract, and type of product/service. However, the report suggests that 
the Council is not procuring products/services which may be readily provided by a 
number of suppliers in the marketplace, if indeed any, and the provider appears to 
be in a unique position to provide the services to the Council to realise the benefits 
set out in the report, which significantly mitigates that risk. The Council would need 
to evidence that to be the case should a challenge arise, as referred to below.

Page 11



The PCR permits direct awards of contracts in limited circumstances, set out at 
regulation 32 (“Negotiated procedure without prior publication”) such that reg 32 
(2)(b)(ii) confirms use of the procedure:
“…where the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a particular 
economic operator for any of the following reasons:—
 (ii)  competition is absent for technical reasons,
 but only….where no reasonable alternative or substitute exists and the absence of 
competition is not the result of an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the 
procurement;”

A second option under PCR for the Council would be for it to publish a voluntary ex-
ante transparency (VEAT) notice. That would not be without risk, however, as any 
other interested party which the Council were unaware of could respond to the VEAT 
notice and so the Council would have potentially encouraged a challenge that may 
not otherwise have arisen. The Council would then need to adequately and 
objectively justify its reasons for not undertaking a fully compliant process and 
issuing an OJEU notice, but if the Council is confident that other suppliers and the 
market generally is not yet ready to deliver the package of products/services, that 
risk would be assessed as relatively  low.

For information, Regulation 99 of the Public Contracts Regulations explains that a 
VEAT notice is a notice containing the following information:

 The name and contact details of the Contracting Authority; 
 A description of the object of the contract; 
 A justification of the decision of the Contracting Authority to award the 

contract without the prior publication of a contract notice; 
 The name and contact details of the economic operator to be awarded the 

contract; and 
 Where appropriate, any other information which the Contracting Authority 

considers it useful to include.
Furthermore, the same Regulation states that a finding of ineffectiveness cannot be 
made where all of the following apply:

 The Contracting Authority considered that the award of the contract without 
prior publication of a contract notice was permitted by the Public Contract 
Regulations; 

 The Contracting Authority had published a VEAT notice in the Official Journal, 
expressing its intention to enter into the contract; and 

 The contract had not been entered into before the end of a period of at least 
10 days beginning with the day after the date on which the VEAT notice was 
published.

A further option which carries a higher level of risk of challenge would be for the 
Council to argue (if challenged) that the PCR also allow for modifications to be made 

Page 12



to existing contracts such that a modification (here an extension) may be made 
where one of the following conditions are fulfilled: 
1 A change of contractor cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such as 
requirements of interchangeability or interoperability with existing equipment, 
services or installations procured under the initial procurement, or
2. A change of contractor would cause significant inconvenience or substantial 
duplication of costs for the contracting authority, 
Provided that any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the initial 
contract. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager, 
x6243

Directly awarding a contract is always at risk of challenge by an aggrieved supplier, 
on the basis that it should have been put out to competition.  The risk of challenge 
increases with the value and term of the contract.

It is clear from the evidence provided in the report that there is a lack of competition 
in the market for this type of service, and little has moved on since the tender was 
done in 2015, as recent tender exercises have demonstrated that the same two 
companies are bidding for the work, and one of those has recently gone into 
administration.  

Furthermore, the Council can opt to place a Voluntary Ex-Ante Transparency (VEAT) 
notice in the OJEU.  A VEAT notice would alert the market of the council’s intention 
to enter into a contract without prior publication of a contract notice, and allow a 
period of 10 calendar days for any supplier to challenge the decision.

However in my opinion the risk of challenge is likely to be low, given the lack of 
alternative suppliers in the marketplace. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER: Craig Monaghan            TEL. NO. 793-0339

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  All

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report Data Migration and 
Implementation Services 

Committee Procurement Board
Date December 4th 2019

Category of exemption applied: 3

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

Page 15

Agenda Item 8a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

Yes

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

Sharing of the detail around the proposed award would potentially damage the 
commercial interests of the company.

Other documents attached: No

Name and Title:  Kathy Kennedy, Project Manager

Date: 25 November 2019

Page 16



Document is Restricted

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2019
	5a Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Schools ICT Managed Service Contract
	8a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Data Migration and Implementation Services
	08(a) - Data Migration


